
           

WABASHA PORT AUTHORITY AND 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Wabasha City Hall
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82539841446

Meeting ID 825 3984 1446
Tuesday, September 24, 2024

 5:30 PM
Robin Gwaltney will be attending the meeting remotely.  

           

1. Call to Order -   

2. Roll Call -   

3. Consent Agenda -   

1. August 20, 2024 Port Authority Meeting Minutes  
2. August Port Authority Financials  
3. Bolton & Menk Invoice 0345049  
4. September 2024 Port Authority Travel Reimbursement  
5. 5th Grant Revolving Loan Disbursement 1  
6. 5th Grant Revolving Loan Disbursement 2  

4. Old Business -   

5. New Business -   

1. Determination that the Final Barge Terminal EIS is adequate and approve the determination of adequacy
notice.   

2. Approve Braun Intertec to conduct Phase I environmental on old Athletic Field Site and expenditure not to
exceed $6,474.25   

3. 2025 Budget Discussion- Main Street and Chamber Contributions   
4. RETHOS Downtown Assessment Discussion  
5. Determine Changes to Revolving Loan Process   

6. Coordinators Report -   

1. Coordinators Report  
2. Administrator Update   

7. Other -   

8. Next Meeting - Tuesday, October 15, 2024   

9. Adjourn -   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82539841446


   
Port Authority 3. 1.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: August 20, 2024 Port Authority Meeting Minutes
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
Review August 20, 2024 Port Authority Meeting Minutes.  

ACTION REQUIRED:
Approve August 20, 2024 Port Authority Meeting Minutes.  

Attachments
August 20, 2024 Port Authority Meeting Minutes 



D R A F T

WABASHA PORT AUTHORITY AND
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Wabasha City Hall
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82539841446

Meeting ID 825 3984 1446
Tuesday, August 20, 2024

 5:30 PM
 

Present: President John Friedmeyer; Board Member Dave Wodele; Treasurer Cory Loechler; Vice President
Jeff Sulla; Board Member Mary Flicek; Board Member Craig Falkum 

Absent: Board Member Robin Gwaltney 

 

               
1. Call to Order -
 
2. Roll Call -
 
3. Consent Agenda - 
 
  Moved by Board Member Dave Wodele, seconded by Vice President Jeff Sulla to approve the August

20 Port Authority Meeting Consent Agenda.   

  Vote: 6 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

  Other: Board Member Robin Gwaltney (ABSENT) 

 
1. July 16, 2024 Port Authority Meeting Minutes   

 
2. July Port Authority Financials   

 
3. Bolton & Menk Invoice 0342038   

 
4. Johnson & Scofield Invoice 43472   

 
5. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency Invoice 192288 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82539841446


5. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency Invoice 192288   
 

6. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency Invoice 193414   
 

7. Broken Paddle Revolving Loan Fund Disbursement   
 

8. 02-2024 Resolution for Port President and City Administrator as signatory authorities   
 

9. 03-2024 Resolution committing funds to the Barge Terminal Project   
 
4. Old Business -
 
5. New Business -
 

1. Approval of the State-Level Final EIS for Submittal to the EQB Following Port-Authority Review and
Final Updates

Brian Malm presented the final EIS.  Malm explained that the comments from the MnDNR and
USFWS were related to four main concerns:
1. Concerns about the project including Federal land.
2. The future use of Kohner's industrially zoned parcels minus the 8.2 acres for the City's project and
future expansion of the project that includes water, sewer, and electrical and request for alternative or
expanded layouts of the current project.
3. Other commodities.
4. Recreational impacts to public water. 

Malm explained how these concerns have been addressed.  No wake restrictions will be required. 
There will be a one barge at a time capacity.  There are no plans to expand the facility.  Any future
development would need to undergo its own environmental study and zoning requirements.  There
will be a two barge maximum per day.  There will be minimal recreational impact.  Appendix P will
list all the comments and the response to each comment. 

The state final review period is September 3 - 13.  Next steps include design and permitting.  Tree
removal can only be done before March.        

  

 
  Moved by Board Member Craig Falkum, seconded by Vice President Jeff Sulla to approve the

State-Level Final EIS for submittal to the EQB with final updates.   

  Vote: 6 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

  Other: Board Member Robin Gwaltney (ABSENT) 

 
2. Approval of the Draft Federal EA for Submittal to MARAD for Initial Review.   

 
  Moved by Board Member Craig Falkum, seconded by Board Member Mary Flicek to approve the

draft Federal EA for submittal to MARAD for initial review.   

  Vote: 6 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

  Other: Board Member Robin Gwaltney (ABSENT) 

 



3. Action on launch of Facade Grant Program and request to City Council to utilize TIF funds to support
the project

TIF funds can be used to launch the facade improvement program.  The program would require a 50/50
match from the businesses.  There was discussion regarding the amount of the grants to be awarded. 
Between $15,000 and $21,323 is expected to be available for the facade improvement program.    

  

 
  Moved by Board Member Mary Flicek, seconded by Treasurer Cory Loechler to approve the facade

improvement program guidelines when funds become available in December 2024.   

  Vote: 4 - 2 Adopted

  NAY: Board Member Craig Falkum 
  Vice President Jeff Sulla 
Other: Board Member Robin Gwaltney (ABSENT) 

 
4. 5th Grant Boutique Revolving Loan Fund Application

CEDA Representative, Dusty Liston, presented a revolving loan fund application from 5th Grant
Boutique.  5th Grant is requesting a $25,000 loan with a 10-year repayment at 5% interest.  They are
looking to use the funds to purchase coffee shop equipment.  The Loan Committee has reviewed the
application and required documentation.  The committee recommends approval.  The collateral is the
equipment.  A UCC will be needed since we're using equipment as collateral.    

  

 
  Moved by Board Member Dave Wodele, seconded by Board Member Mary Flicek to approve the 5th

Grant Boutique revolving loan for 10 years at 5% interest.   

  Vote: 6 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

  Other: Board Member Robin Gwaltney (ABSENT) 

 
5. Provide feedback on Livability section of website

Port Authority members reviewed the livability sections of the Preston and Lanesboro city websites. 
Feedback indicated that both sites looked impressive.  Discussion was held regarding the possibility of
adding a livability section to the City of Wabasha website.  Creating a livability section to the City of
Wabasha will be added to the list of CEDA goals.    

  

 
6. Approve up to $10,000 to apply for MnDOT TED funds for highway re-route.

City Administrator, Caroline Gregerson, stated that a letter of interest to apply for the MnDOT TED
funds for the Highway 60 realignment was submitted in July.  MnDOT said to proceed with submitting
an application.  Bolton & Menk will assist with the transportation portion of the application.  Letters of
support will be needed from businesses that will benefit from the highway reroute.  Businesses that
could potentially provide a letter of support were discussed.      

  

 
  Moved by Board Member Craig Falkum, seconded by Vice President Jeff Sulla to approve up to

$10,000 to apply for the MnDOT TED grant.   

  Vote: 6 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

  Other: Board Member Robin Gwaltney (ABSENT) 

 



 
7. Provide feedback to staff on potential new lot creation near Cannon Park, based on a certified survey

map.

Brian Malm is looking for feedback on whether it makes sense to combine lots near Cannon Park. 
Feedback supported combining the lots with the goal of selling them for future development.    

  

 
8. Authorize City Administrator to sign Phase 2 environmental study of 2nd Street Apartment Site, with

Terracon, for $22,200, paid for through grant

Discussion was held regarding the Phase 2 environmental study of the 2nd Street Apartment site. 
Gregerson stated that Chosen Valley did not provide an estimate for the response action plan. 
Terracon did the Phase 1 Study and is familiar with the project.  Terracon has also done MN Deed work
before.  

  

 
  Moved by Vice President Jeff Sulla, seconded by Treasurer Cory Loechler to approve City

Administrator to sign the Phase 2 environmental study of the 2nd Street Apartment Site with Terracon,
for work not to exceed $22,200.   

  Vote: 6 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

  Other: Board Member Robin Gwaltney (ABSENT) 

 
6. CEDA Coordinator Report 
 

1. City Administrator/City Finance Director Updates

Caroline Gregerson provided a  City Administrator update.  Gregerson stated that 20% of her time is
being spent on Port Authority work because it is a better use of resources than using Bolton & Menk
billable hours.  Discussion was held regarding having the Port Authority contribute 20% of the City
Administrator's salary and benefits and 10% of the Finance Director's salary and benefits, plus $5,000
for general administrative costs to the General Fund.  

The announcement of the housing grant recipients has been pushed back to the end of September due
to the number of applications received.  

  

 
2. August 2024 Wabasha Port Authority Coordinators Report

Dusty Liston provided a Coordinators Report.  CEDA goals were reviewed.  Liston stated that she is
working on getting letters of support for the Revolving Loan Fund.  Discussion was held regarding a
potential new campground.  Mayor Durand stated that she is looking for grants to help facilitate a
community-driven design for a new welcome sign.  A  Taylor Rural and Small-Town grant application
has been submitted for a potential playground at Eagle's Basin.  

  

 
7. Other -
 
8. Next Meeting - Tuesday, September 17, 2024
 
9. Adjourn -
 
  Moved by Board Member Mary Flicek, seconded by Board Member Craig Falkum to adjourn the



  Moved by Board Member Mary Flicek, seconded by Board Member Craig Falkum to adjourn the
August 20, 2024 Port Authority meeting.   

  Vote: 6 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

  Other: Board Member Robin Gwaltney (ABSENT) 

 
 



   
Port Authority 3. 2.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: August Port Authority Financials
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
Review August Port Authority Financials.  

ACTION REQUIRED:
Approve August Port Authority Financials.  

Attachments
August 2024 Port Authority Financials 



Port Authority Fund 200 Cash

Port Authority Checking $116,457

Port Authority Fund 210 Revolving Loan Fund

Port Authority Revolving Loan Fund $37,670

Total Current Account Balances: $154,127

Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25

Port Authority Revenue

Misc Interest $250 $250 $250 $250

2025 Tax Levy $61,381

Winter Haul $258,000 $258,000

Interfund Loan from the General Fund $150,000

Port Authority Revenue $150,250 $0 $0 $258,250 $0 $0 $250 $258,000 $0 $61,631 $0 $0

Port Authority Expenses

City of Wabasha - Admin Support $7,500 $21,629

CEDA $3,511 $3,511 $3,511 $3,511 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465

Barge Terminal Design Work and Engineering $250,000

Environmental Review (Port matching funds) $25,000 $25,000

Interfund Loan from the General Fund $300,000

Chamber Contribution $15,000

Main Street Contribution $6,000

Port Authority Expenses $28,511 $28,511 $3,511 $11,011 $25,465 $4,465 $4,465 $254,465 $4,465 $26,094 $4,465 $304,465

Port Authority Fund 200 Balance $238,197 $209,686 $206,175 $453,414 $427,949 $423,484 $419,269 $422,804 $418,339 $453,877 $449,412 $144,947

Revolving Loan Fund Revenue

Hill Loan Repayment $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550

Anderson House Repayment $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714

Round the Clock Nutrition Repayment $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183

Cassie Modjeski Repayment $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208

Broken Paddle Repayment $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28

5th Grant Repayment $265 $265 $265 $265 $265 $265

Revolving Loan Fund Revenue $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683

Revolving Loan Fund Expenses

5th Grant $25,000

Anderson House $1,863

Revolving Loan Fund Expenses $26,863 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revolving Loan Fund Balance $12,490 $14,173 $15,857 $17,540 $19,223 $20,907 $22,590 $24,273 $25,957 $27,640 $29,323 $31,007

Port Authority Current Account Balances

Port Authority: Fund 200

Revolving Loan Fund: Fund 201

Wabasha Port Authority Financial Summary and Projection
August 31, 2024



Port Authority Balance: Fund 200 $116,457.43 July 31, 2024 Balance $295,513.95

Revolving Loan Fund Balance: Fund 201 $37,669.55      Deposit: Housing Study Expenses Charged Journaled to APRA $5,000.00

Total $154,126.98      Deposit: Interest $234.23

     Withdrawal: Bolton & Menk Invoice 0342038 $180,220.75

     Withdrawal: Johnson Scofield Invoice 43472 $4,070.00

August 31, 2024 Balance $116,457.43

Port Authority Revolving Loan Fund

July 31, 2024 Balance $39,020.26

     Deposit: Hill Loan Payment $550.00

     Deposit: Modjeski Loan Payment $210.00

     Deposit: Round the Clock Loan Payment $200.00

     Deposit: Round the Clock Loan Payment $200.00

     Deposit: Anderson House Loan Payment $714.29

     Deposit: 5th Grant Loan Application Fee $100.00

    Withdrawal: Anderson House Loan Payment $3,325.00

August 31, 2024 Balance $37,669.55

Port Authority Checking Account

Wabasha Port Authority Bank Account Detail

August 2024

Account DetailsSummary
Port Authority Account Summary



   
Port Authority 3. 3.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: Bolton & Menk Invoice 0345049
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
Review Bolton & Menk Invoice 0345049.  

ACTION REQUIRED:
Approve Bolton & Menk Invoice 0345049.  

Attachments
Bolton & Menk Invoice 0345049 





   
Port Authority 3. 4.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: September 2024 Port Authority Travel Reimbursement
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
Review September 2024 Port Authority Travel Reimbursement.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Approve September 2024 Port Authority Travel Reimbursement. 

Attachments
September 2024 Port Authority Travel Reimbursement 





   
Port Authority 3. 5.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: 5th Grant Revolving Loan Disbursement 1
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
Review 5th Grant Revolving Loan Disbursement 1.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Approve 5th Grant Revolving Loan Disbursement 1.

Attachments
5th Grant RLF Disbursement 1 



5th Grant RLF Disbursement 1: $17,427.19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



 





 



   
Port Authority 3. 6.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: 5th Grant Revolving Loan Disbursement 2
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
Review 5th Grant Revolving Loan Disbursement 2.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Approve 5th Grant Revolving Loan Disbursement 2.

Attachments
5th Grant RLF Disbursement 2 



5th Grant RLF Disbursement 2: $1,874.98 

 

 

 

 



 



   
Port Authority 5. 1.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: Determination that the Final Barge Terminal EIS is adequate and approve the determination of

adequacy notice. 
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
The Wabasha Barge Facility state-level Final Environmental Impact Statement (EIS), which included document
updates and responses to comments from the Draft EIS, the Agency coordination meeting, and the updated Draft
EIS was completed and sent out for a 10-day public comment on September 3, 2024. This review period was to
request comments on the adequacy of the Final EIS for the proposed project. The City received two (2) comment
letters from Mr. Charlie Bricher and the MnDNR. No other comments have been received on the Final EIS
document.

The 18 comments received do not impede the completion of the state-level EIS process. Many of the comments
have previously been addressed and will be discussed during a follow-up meeting with MnDNR. Additionally,
much of the information is incorporated into the Federal Environmental Assessment (EA) for the Maritime
Administration’s (MARAD) environmental review and/or will be submitted as part of the various permit
applications.

Staff Recommendations:
• Staff recommends the Port Authority members review the attached Final EIS comment letters, comment response
document, and draft Determination of Adequacy notice.
• Identify any updates or changes needed to the Determination of Adequacy notice.
• Staff requests the Port Authority determine the Final EIS as adequate and approve the Determination of Adequacy
notice.
o This approval, and follow-on submittal, completes the state-level environmental review process in compliance
with MN Rules 4410.
Next Steps:
Following Determination of Adequacy approval, staff will submit this document packet to the Environmental
Quality Board to complete the state-level EIS process.

The Federal EA process is currently awaiting on responses from other agencies to complete the regulatory
requirements for this process. We anticipate having these responses back by late October to submit the Draft EA to
MARAD in November 2024.
Permits and approvals activities will continue forward. While these cannot be finalized until completion of the
Federal EA process, coordination efforts with local, state, and federal agencies can occur concurrently.

A copy of the EIS is available on the City's website: https://www.wabasha.org/barge-terminal-facility/

Attachments
FEIS Determination of Adequacy for Approval 
Minnesota DNR Comment Letter 
Charlie Bricher Comment Letter 
MPCA Comment Letter 



STATE OF MINNESOTA  

CITY OF WABASHA PORT AUTHORITY  

DETERMINATION OF ADEQUACY 

 
WABASHA BARGE FACILITY 

FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
 
 
The City of Wabasha Port Authority (Port Authority), the Responsible Governmental Unit 
(RGU) under the Minnesota Environmental Policy Act, published a Final Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS) for the Wabasha Barge Facility Project (Project) in September 2024. 
Notification of Availability of the Wabasha Barge Facility Final EIS for public and agency review 
was published in the Environmental Quality Board (EQB) Monitor on September 3, 2024, and 
was noticed through the local newspaper and direct email to agencies and interested parties. 
The Final EIS was also available for public review digitally at the City of Wabasha website: 
https://www.wabasha.org/. The Final EIS is incorporated herein as part of this Determination 
of Adequacy. 

The City of Wabasha, in cooperation with the Wabasha Port Authority, is proposing to construct 
a commercial port facility on the Mississippi River in the City of Wabasha, Minnesota. The 8.2-
acre Wabasha Barge Facility would facilitate the transfer of materials, to include but not limited 
to dredge material and other commodities, from river barges to trucks for transport to off-site 
facilities. The City of Wabasha would own the project site and contract out the port operations 
and transportation of materials. The Project is further described in Chapter 2 and Appendix E of 
the Final EIS.  

   

DETERMINATION OF ADEQUACY 

Chapter 4410 of the Minnesota Rules requires the Wabasha Port Authority, as the RGU, to 
determine the adequacy of the Final EIS for the Wabasha Barge Facility Project. The Port 
Authority has determined that the Final EIS is adequate under Minnesota Rule 4410.2800, 
Subp. 4. This rule sets the following standards for determining if a Final EIS is adequate: 

Subp. 4. Conditions. The final EIS shall be determined adequate if it: 

A. addresses the potentially significant issues and alternatives raised in scoping so that all 
significant issues for which information can be reasonably obtained have been analyzed in 
conformance with part 4410.2300, items G and H; 

B. provides responses to the substantive comments received during the draft EIS 
review concerning issues raised in scoping; and 

C. was prepared in compliance with the procedures of the act and parts 4410.0200 
to 4410.6500. 

In making this Determination of Adequacy, the Port Authority applied the criteria found in 
part 4410.2800, Subp. 4, and finds that: 



1. The Final EIS addresses all potentially significant issues and alternatives identified 
during scoping and the draft EIS processes. All significant issues for which 
information could reasonably be obtained have been analyzed in conformance 
with Minnesota Rules, part 4410.2300, items G and H. The analysis in the Final 
EIS addresses long-term and short-term (construction) direct and indirect 
impacts, as well as cumulative impacts related to the Project.  

2. The Final EIS provides responses to all substantive comments received during the 
Draft EIS and Updated Draft EIS public and agency comment periods. Appendix J 
of the Final EIS contains all comments received during the public comment 
periods on the Draft EIS and Updated Draft EIS, respectively, and provides 
responses to these comments. 

3. The Final EIS was prepared in compliance with the procedures of Minnesota 
Statutes, Chapter 116D, and with Minnesota Rules parts 4410.0200 through 
4410.6500. 

Additionally, during the public comment on the adequacy of the Final EIS, the Port Authority 
received two (2) letters with comments (15 total comments). The comments addressed  
additional project considerations and the sufficiency of the analysis and mitigation included in 
the Final EIS. While Minnesota Rule 4410.2800 does not require an RGU to respond to 
comments on the Final EIS, the Port Authority did review and consider the comments received 
on the adequacy of the Final EIS as part of this Determination of Adequacy.  

As a result of these findings, and based on the administrative record, the Port Authority has 
determined the Final EIS for the Wabasha Barge Facility Project is adequate under the State of 
Minnesota's environmental review process. This Determination of Adequacy concludes the 
Minnesota environmental review process. 

 

 
____________________________________________ ______________________________ 
John Friedmeyer      Date 
President 

Wabasha Port Authority 



1 

 

 
Division of Ecological and Water Resources 
Region 3 Headquarters 
1200 Warner Road 
Saint Paul, MN 55106 

September 13, 2024 

 
Caroline Gregerson, City Administrator 
Wabasha Port Authority 
900 Hiawatha Drive E 
Wabasha, Minnesota 55981 

Dear Ms. Gregerson: 

Thank you for the opportunity to review the Wabasha Barge Facility Final Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS). The Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR) greatly appreciates the City of 
Wabasha’s extensive coordination with our agency and willingness to revise the project scope and 
previous versions of the EIS. Our goal has been to inform an EIS that can meet State permitting needs 
and satisfy the state environmental review process. The purpose of our comments is to identify 
remaining questions to address during the permitting stage and in the upcoming federal environmental 
review process. With that in mind, we respectfully submit the following comments for your 
consideration: 

1. The Final EIS available through the City’s website and provided in the Environmental Quality 
Board (EQB) Monitor publication on September 3, 2024 is dated August 2024. A different 
version dated September 2024 can be accessed elsewhere through the EQB website, but is not 
readily available from the published link. It appears that the revised version has not been 
widely available for public review during this comment period. 

Please note that the Appendices are also missing from the Final EIS document available for 
public comment on the City’s website. Omitting this information hinders a full and accurate 
review of the project and assessment of the adequacy of the Final EIS by the public and 
stakeholder agencies, especially given the significant changes that have been made to the EIS 
since the previous public comment period. We are concerned that these issues along with the 
shortened review period (four fewer days than stated in the EQB Monitor notification) for the 
Final EIS document have not allowed for adequate public review of the proposed project. 

2. On July 1, 2024, DNR provided detailed comments on a revised Draft EIS that was made 
available for agency review. We have reiterated some of those comments that were not 
adequately addressed in the Final EIS so that they can be included in the official record.  

3. Please see the attached five additional Natural Heritage Review letters dated September 12, 
2024 for each of the proposed alternative sites considered in the EIS. These letters should be 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fvmm0dj30.r.us-west-2.awstrack.me%2FL0%2Fhttps%3A%252F%252Fwww.wabasha.org%252F%2F1%2F010101919e280cbd-433ff2a2-f49e-462f-a0ac-f8c59939ccb9-000000%2F5BQ5WRRI2hW0-isjxkJp2pj3Ev0%3D390&data=05%7C02%7CHazel.Houle%40state.mn.us%7C88d5ab7a13fa4f557c8d08dcc827f4e0%7Ceb14b04624c445198f26b89c2159828c%7C0%7C0%7C638605323004430733%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=b4J%2BOhiMIYeNcPyvOoUwdhWr0wSuUXVL32kx%2FM7wbvs%3D&reserved=0
https://webapp.pca.state.mn.us/eqb-search/project-detail/252289?siId=252289-PROJ0000000002
https://webapp.pca.state.mn.us/eqb-search/project-detail/252289?siId=252289-PROJ0000000002


2 

 

included in the official record, and used to inform any future federal environment review being 
conducted for the project. Please note that Natural Heritage Reviews are meant to be a form of 
early coordination that informs project planning and development, but this information was not 
obtained early enough to be used in the alternative analysis within the EIS. The comparison of 
natural resource impacts within the EIS, and the conclusions made regarding the level of 
impacts to state-listed species are not accurate. The DNR will consider the information from the 
Natural Heritage Review letters about impacts to rare features and state-listed species during 
future permitting decisions. Further coordination with DNR will be necessary regarding state-
listed species. Please note that the EIS repeatedly refers to a “USFWS takings permit” instead of 
a DNR takings permit when discussing state-listed species. 

4. Section 2.1, Project Description; Section 3.3, Description of Preferred Alternative:  The April 23, 
2024 agency meeting presentation was very helpful in clarifying the proposed project and limits 
to the size and scope of the preferred alternative. This information is not as clearly conveyed in 
the EIS. The last two bullet points under the project description (page 42) mention that electric, 
sewer and water utilities will be installed as a part of the project, and that a field office building 
could be proposed as a future action. This creates a sense of uncertainty for the extent of the 
size and scope of the project.  

For the EIS to best inform the permitting process and permit the least environmentally 
impactful feasible alternative, there must be sufficient definitions or limits to each alternative 
to effectively evaluate and compare them. After a project identifies the scope and design and 
completes environmental review and permitting, any substantial future changes may require 
additional environmental review or permitting. 

It will be important to have site plan details for comparison between alternatives to fully 
comprehend the scope and limits of each alternative. The only site plan included in project 
figures appears to be Figure 4, which was taken from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ (USACE) 
Dredged Material Management Plan (DMMP). Figure 4 does not appear to represent the 
project area outline as depicted in other figures, the area proposed to be dredged, or the 
extent of structural improvements on the property such as scale booth, and field house. More 
detailed site plans representing each alternative that reflect the differences in project 
design/footprint and the size of the dredging area will be necessary to inform permitting 
decisions. We recommend including updated figures in any federal environmental review 
documents that are being prepared for the project. 

5. Section 2.5, Project Cost, Funding, and Schedule: The DNR may request a more detailed 
breakdown of projects costs and how the final $4.6 million total was calculated in order to 
inform permitting decisions. 

6. Section 3.2, Alternate Locations: Impacts to state-listed species and sensitive ecological areas, 
such as Minnesota Biological Survey (MBS) Sites of Biodiversity Significance and/or DNR Native 
Plant Communities, are not adequately compared in the natural resource summary for each 
location.  

7. Table 1-Alternate Sites Assessment: This section does not explicitly say that any of these 
alternative sites were removed from further consideration, or explain why the Carrel’s Site is 
the preferred location based on all the assessment factors.  



3 

 

8. Section 3.2.2, Onsite Alternative 3-Alternative Site Layout: This section states that the City 
desired to use an existing road in order to reduce tree clearing by almost an acre. The road 
location was moved so that the current landowner could reserve the land for future 
development. This alternative seems to have been rejected as the preferred alternative, 
despite requiring fewer natural resource impacts, to allow for future industrial development of 
the site, and yet that future development is not being considered in the EIS. Section 4.2.1.3 
explains that the City is only purchasing 8.2 acres of the total 26.8 acre site, which raises some 
questions:  

a. If the current landowner, who we understand will be operating the barge facility, 
chooses to utilize his own property in a manner that supports the barge facility, it  
carries implications for the size and scope of the project. It is unclear how this 
proposed project may be connected to future development projects on the 
property. When multiple projects are owned or operated by the same entity, they 
may meet the definition of a connected and phased action under Minnesota Rule 
4410.2000, Subpart 4, concerning the handling of complex projects composed of 
multiple phases:  

• Subp. 4. Connected actions and phased actions. Multiple projects and 
multiple stages of a single project that are connected actions or phased 
actions must be considered in total when determining the need for an EIS 
and in preparing the EIS. 

In connected actions and phased actions where it is not possible to 
adequately address all the project components or stages at the time of the 
initial EIS, a supplemental EIS must be completed before approval and 
construction of each subsequent project component or stage. The 
supplemental EIS must address the impacts associated with the particular 
project component or stage that were not addressed in the initial EIS. 

b. The rezoning of both parcels within the Carrel’s Site alternative to Industrial allows 
for development of the entire 26.8 acres that are currently zoned RC (Residential 
Conservancy) and R1 (Low Density Residential), in addition to the 8.2 acres the City 
is proposing for the project footprint. This appears to meet the definition of a 
“cumulative impact” under Minnesota Rule 4410.0200, Subpart 11, which states: 

• Subp. 11. Cumulative impact. "Cumulative impact" means the impact on the 
environment that results from incremental effects of the project in addition 
to other past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future projects regardless 
of what person undertakes the other projects. Cumulative impacts can result 
from individually minor but collectively significant projects taking place over 
a period of time. 

9. Section 4.6.2.5, Alternate Site Land Use and Zoning Assessment: This assessment of each 
alternate site concludes that the project proposed is not compatible with existing land use and 
zoning. While relevant, these considerations were not barriers to the selection of the Carrel’s 
site that required a Comprehensive Plan amendment and rezoning of the project area. These 
factors should be applied consistently when comparing alternatives. 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/4410.2000/#rule.4410.2000.4
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/4410.2000/#rule.4410.2000.4
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/4410.0200/#rule.4410.0200.11


4 

 

10. Section 4.13.1.3 Preferred Alternative Assessment: A more detailed analysis of recurrent 
sedimentation will be required as part of the DNR Public Water Work Permitting process.  

11. Section 4.13.3.3, Preferred Alternative Assessment: This description indicates that there will be 
no stormwater treatment for the site despite the increase in impervious surfaces within the 
shoreland of the Mississippi River, and Section 5 does list specific stormwater BMPs for the 
project. Stormwater treatment BMPs are recommended for the project to protect water quality 
in this sensitive ecological area. 

12. Section 4.15.1.5, Alternative Site Assessment: Listing the number of state-listed species present 
within a mile can be informative but does not represent the level of impact to these species as 
a result of project activities in a way that allows for accurate comparison between alternatives. 
The information provided in the attached Natural Heritage Review letters should be used to 
inform comparisons between alternatives. 

13. Section 4.15.2.1, Rare Threatened and Endangered Species and Ecosystems. The discussion of 
mussels within the project area mentions USACE mussel surveys but not DNR mussel surveys. 
The DNR surveyed within the vicinity of the proposed project in 2008 and 2021; they found live 
mussels including threatened species and species of special concern.  

During the most recent mussel survey conducted within the project area on June 6-8, 2023, one 
state threatened species, the mucket, was documented alive. It may be present within the 
proposed project area at the time of project construction, and further coordination with DNR 
regarding state-listed species will be required. 

Thank you again for the opportunity to review this document. Please let me know if you have any 
questions. 

Sincerely, 

 
Melissa Collins 
Regional Environmental Assessment Ecologist | Ecological and Water Resources 
Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
1200 Warner Road 
St. Paul, MN 55106 
Phone: 651-259-5755 
Email: melissa.collins@state.mn.us 
 
 
CC:  Megan Moore, DNR South District Supervisor 
 Lucas Youngsma, DNR Area Hydrologist 
  





September 19, 2024

Caroline Gregerson
City Administrator
Wabasha Port Authority
900 Hiawatha Drive E
Wabasha, MN 55981
cityadmin@wabasha.org

RE: Wabasha Barge Facility - Environmental Impact Statement

Dear: Caroline Gregerson,

Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on the Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for the
Wabasha Barge Facility project (Project) located in Wabasha County, Minnesota. The Project consists of The City of
Wabasha, in cooperation with the Wabasha Port Authority, proposing to construct a commercial port facility
(“Wabasha Barge Facility”) at Upper Mississippi River mile 760 in Wabasha, Minnesota. The project site is located
on tax parcels R27.00004.00 and R27.00005.03 within the City of Wabasha, Wabasha County, Minnesota (Section
30, Township 111N, Range 010W). Regarding matters for which the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA)
has regulatory responsibility and other interests, the MPCA staff has the following comments for your
consideration.

401 Certification:

Permits and Approvals (Section 1.7)
This section indicates that a Clean Water Act (CWA) Section 404 Permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
(USACE) for project related wetland impacts may be necessary. The EIS (Environmental Impact Statement) should
clarify that if a USACE Section 404 Individual Permit is required, then an MPCA Section 401 Water Quality
Certification with Conditions, Waiver, or Denial must also be obtained as part of the permitting process. You can
find additional information about the MPCA’s 401 Certification process at:
https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/clean-water-act-section-401-water-quality-certifications .

Water Resources (Section 4.13)
Surface Water
• The EIS should clarify that if the USACE Section 404 permit or the Section 10 permit is required and in accordance
with Minnesota Statutes, the Project should include the MPCA as a regulator of all surface waters as defined by
Minn. Stat. § 115.01, subd. 22 Waters of the state. Even though there may be surface waters that are determined
to be USACE non-jurisdictional or exempt from the Wetland Conservation Act, all surface waters are regulated by
the MPCA, and any surface water impact needs to be described in the application and may require mitigation.
• In addition, if any of the USACE permitting vehicles are required, the 401 Water Quality Certification must also be
included and becomes an enforceable component of the associated federal license or permit, issued under either
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act or Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act. The scope of a Clean Water Act
Section 401 certification is limited to assuring that a discharge from a federally licensed or permitted activity will
comply with water quality requirements. In addition, the applicant must also submit to the MPCA the
Antidegradation Assessment in accordance with water quality standards Minn R. 7050.0265 and should review the
Antidegradation requirements in 7050.0285.

mailto:cityadmin@wabasha.org
https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/clean-water-act-section-401-water-quality-certifications


Caroline Gregerson

September 19, 2024
Page 2

If a USACE Section 404 permit is required, then 401-water quality certification is also required. The applicant must
follow the 401-certification process:

 The applicant must confirm that with the completion of the Final EIS a Record of Decision/Finding of Fact
(ROD/FOF) will or will not be required?

 The 401-program cannot authorize a certification with conditions, a waiver, or a denial until a complete
ROD/FOF is received.

 The applicant must request and complete a pre-filing meeting.
 The applicant must complete the antidegradation (anti-deg) assessment and associated documents. A

reasonable period-of-time (RPOT) will be issued after a complete anti-deg is submitted.
 The MPCA 401 program will complete an internal triage meeting to determine if this project should be

certified with conditions, waived, or denied.

Noise:

 MPCA noise staff appreciate seeing the response to a constituents’ noise concern in comment number 67
of appendix P, indicating a screening berm will be installed to mitigate noise impacts for adjacent
landowners.

We appreciate the opportunity to review this Project. Please be aware that this letter does not constitute approval
by the MPCA of any or all elements of the Project for the purpose of pending or future permit actions by the
MPCA. Ultimately, it is the responsibility of the Project proposer to secure any required permits and to comply
with any requisite permit conditions. If you have any questions concerning our review of this EIS, please contact
me by email at Chris.Green@state.mn.us or by telephone at 507-476-4258.

Sincerely,

Chris Green
This document has been electronically signed.

Chris Green
Project Manager
Environmental Review Unit
Resource Management and Assistance Division

CG:mb

cc: Dan Card, MPCA
Kirsten Dieterman, MPCA
Jeffery Hedman, MPCA
Nicole Peterson, MPCA
Innocent Eyoh, MPCA
Deepa deAlwis, MPCA
David Sahli, MPCA
Julie Henderson, MPCA
MPCA Regional Manager

mailto:Chris.Green@state.mn.us


   
Port Authority 5. 2.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: Approve Braun Intertec to conduct Phase I environmental on old Athletic Field Site and expenditure

not to exceed $6,474.25 
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
A Request for Proposals (RFP) was sent out to geotechnical and environmental consulting firms on September 4th.  Three
firms were invited; Braun Intertec, American Engineering Testing, and Terracon, all with offices located in Rochester. 
Responses were due on September 18th.  Only one response was received, from Braun Intertec.
The RFP requested a Statement of Qualifications for all geotechnical and environmental work that will be required for the TH
60 Re-Route project.  In addition to qualifications, a cost was requested for initial services, which consists of the completion of
a Phase 1 environmental assessment of the Athletic Field property.  It was not feasible to request a cost for additional
services at this time because the scope of additional work will be informed by the Phase 1.
 
Th intent would be for the WPA to select a firm based on qualifications and cost for intial services and complete the Phase 1. 
Once the scope of follow on work is determined, staff would work with the selected firm to develop a scope of work and fee
for additional work to be brought back to the WPA for approval.
Based on our review of Braun Intertec's qualifications, Bolton & Menk's experience in working with them in the past, and
their fee for the Phase 1 Environmental Assessment, we recommend that the WPA approve the selection of Braun Intertec as
the Geotechnical and Environmental consultant for the TH 60 Re-Route project.   

Depending on what the Phase I identifies, there may a Phase II that needs to be completed. 
 

Attachments



September 18, 2024 | Trunk Highway 60

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS TO PROVIDE 
PROFESSIONAL GEOTECHNICAL AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
City of Wabasha



 

   

 

Braun Intertec Corporation 
18 Woodlake Drive SE 
Rochester, MN 55904 

507.281.2515 
braunintertec.com 

 

Caroline Gregerson - City Administrator  
City of Wabasha  
900 Hiawatha Drive East  
PO Box 268  
Wabasha, MN  55981  
(651) 565-4568 
 
 
Dear Caroline Gregerson, 
  
The City of Wabasha needs a trusted and responsive consulting firm to provide timely and accurate results for their 
geotechnical and environmental needs. Braun Intertec Corporation (Braun Intertec) is responding to Request for 
proposals to provide professional Geotechnical and Environmental Services for Trunk Highway 60 Realignment. Our 
interdisciplinary approach is based on creative problem solving, proactive planning, and comprehensive support from 
Braun Intertec experts to provide a mix of services to meet City of Wabasha’s needs in an efficient and timely manner.  

Benefits to working with Braun Intertec includes:  

 Experience | In the last five years, Braun Intertec has completed numerous Phase I Environmental Sites 
Assessments for corridor roadway projects including the Kellogg Bridge Reconstruction in St. Paul, and highway 
reconstruction projects in Winona, Kasson, Rochester, Albert Lea, Zumbrota Falls-Mazeppa and others. Our 
geotechnical group has completed evaluations in similar land types in Wabasha, Albert Lea, New Ulm, Le Sueur, 
Bricelyn, and Rochester . Our project team’s depth and local experience involving regulatory information review 
and corridor reconnaissance are essential for identifying potential challenges early in project development and 
providing recommendations to the design team and project sponsor.  

 
 Availability and Commitment | Braun Intertec has a workforce of over 1,000 employees spread across several 

offices in the central United States, including nearby offices in Rochester, La Crosse and Minneapolis/St. Paul. Our 
staff of engineers and scientists routinely partner on joint environmental and geotechnical projects to provide 
efficient and timely delivery. If chosen for this contract, our assigned personnel will seamlessly integrate into the 
project team whenever their expertise is required. 

Cities have benefited from our many interrelated services, which also include building and structure sciences, drilling, 
environmental consulting, health and safety consulting, geospatial operations, and nondestructive examination. If you 
have any questions regarding our submittal or would like additional information, please contact Jill Mickelson, P.E. at 
507.273.7170 or jmickelson@braunintertec.com. 

 

Sincerely,  

Braun Intertec Corporation 
      

 
Jill Mickelson, PE       Phillip Bailey, PE 

Principal in Charge      Associate Director 
Principal Engineer | Investigation & Remediation   Geotechnical Engineer 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

Consultant Qualifications 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 

 

 

Provide the number of years the firm has been engaged in providing environmental and geotechnical professional 
services based on the scope of work outlined throughout this request for proposal.  

Braun Intertec has been providing geotechnical and environmental services since 1957 and has maintained a local 
presence in southeast Minnesota since 1979. 

Our geotechnical team routinely partners with design firms on the evaluation of subsurface conditions and design 
recommendations for roadway materials, pavement recommendations, drainage structures and utility installations.  The 
geotechnical team proposed for the Project has extensive experience in each of the listed services.  Our local knowledge 
of conditions in the Wabasha area will enable us to provide accurate and targeted feedback to the design team during 
construction as well. Their collectiveexperienced team of material testers routinely measure and provide quick turn 
results on testing through our electronic data delivery system and are equipped with industry leading testing equipment.   
As well as their crews are experienced at partnering with the owner representatives to evaluate problematic conditions 
and track the implementation of corrective measures. 

Our environmental team has a depth of experience in the listed services as well, with many local and statewide projects 
covering a range of project scenarios.  The mutli-disciplined approach to site assessment and experience on similar 
projects enables us to anticipate potential problems early in the design process to minimize impacts on cost and schedule.  
Our team members have experience from the initial environmental assessments for Phase I and II assessments, to the 
evaluation of contamination impacts to proposed improvements.  Once the initial assessments have been completed, our 
team members evaluate the risks posed by contamination to the Project, as well as potential impacts to protected 
resources, and assists project sponsors and designers in developing the appropriate management strategies.  The teams’ 
staff have conducted supplemental hydrogeologic assessments, evaluated utility engineering controls, developed 
stormwater protection plans and provided real-time observation and documentation of contamination handling during 
construction. 

 

 

 

BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION CORE SERVICES 

Geotechnical Engineering 

Environmental Consulting 

Construction Materials Engineering & Testing 

Nondestructive Examination 

Building and Structures Sciences 
 

 
 
 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

Resumes 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 

 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

Project Approach 
 

 The objective of the Modified Phase I ESA is to identify, to the extent possible, sources of contamination 
(based on present or former use) on properties that could impact the project corridor. As identified in the 
Request for Proposal (RFP), the City of Wabasha is requesting a 100-foot buffer surrounding the outlined 
project area.  
  
The Modified Phase I ESA will be conducted in general conformance with the scope of services used by 
Minnesota Department of Transportation’s (MnDOT) Office of Environmental Stewardship (OES). This 
approach will be completed using a modified version of the American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM) 
methodology E 1527-21, Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessment: Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment Process. The approach is modified from ASTM standards as the Phase I ESA will be conducted from 
the proposed project area, limited to a 100-foot buffer from the proposed project area, and does not meet all 
the requirements of ASTM Standard E1527-21 nor All Appropriate Inquiry (AAI). The approach is accepted by 
the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) for contaminant management planning and property 
evaluation when seeking liability assurances.  
  

Scope of Services 
  
Corridor History Review 
The Modified Phase I ESA will summarize reasonably ascertainable information pertaining to former and 
current land-use activities at the corridor. Our summary will include a review of aerial photographs, fire 
insurance maps, city directories, topographic maps, and/or other historical documents. 
  
Regulatory Information Review 
Braun Intertec will request that a national regulatory information vendor, such as GeoSearch, Inc., conduct a 
limited file evaluation of the corridor. The databases will be searched to one-quarter mile from the 100-foot 
buffer surrounding the project area boundary. Braun Intertec will review this information to identify records 
that indicate known or potential environmental hazards within the corridor and/or surrounding area and to 
evaluate the likelihood for those hazards to impact the corridor. As part of this task, we will review pertinent 
web-based databases for potential areas of environmental concern such as the Minnesota Department of 
Agriculture and Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) “What’s in My Neighborhood” and the Minnesota 
Department of Health County Well Index. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

 
 
If the regulatory report identifies any reported contamination sites, for which MPCA project files exist, we will 
request a review of those file files to obtain more detailed information about the magnitude and extent of 
contamination and the status of each site for inclusion in the Modified Phase I ESA report. For the purposes of 
this proposal, we will assume that up to two files will be reviewed within the project corridor and are identified 
in the following table: 
  

Facility Name Address Activity MPCA Regulatory ID 
Kwik Trip 843 106 Hiawatha Dr W, Wabasha, MN 55981 Leak Site LS0016352 
Gene's Conoco 105 Hiawatha Dr E, Wabasha, MN 55981 Leak Site LS0010716 

  
In addition, we will determine the location of any Wellhead Protection Areas completely or partially identified 
within the project corridor. 
  
Corridor Reconnaissance and Interviews 
The Modified Phase I ESA will include a reconnaissance of the corridor. The reconnaissance of the corridor, 
which will include, at minimum, drive- and walk-by reviews, and where feasible, on-site reviews for indications 
including, but not limited to, the storage and/or use of hazardous materials and/or petroleum products, wells, 
storage tanks, and other obvious potential sources of contamination. Interviews with neighbors, tenants, and 
owners within the project area will be limited to specific individuals that you direct us to contact. 
  
Results and Reporting 
Properties in the project area will be ranked as having a high, medium, or low potential for contamination 
based on criteria established by MnDOT. Each property will be ranked based solely on the property's potential 
for contamination, and not on the property's location with respect to the proposed construction limits. Braun 
Intertec will prepare a Site Data Summary sheet for each site exhibiting a high or medium potential for 
contamination along the project corridor. The report will be consistent with the standard MnDOT format for a 
Modified Phase I ESA. A draft Modified Phase I ESA report will be provided before submittal of the final report. 
The Modified Phase I ESA report will remain in draft status until we are notified by you to proceed with 
issuance of the final Modified Phase I ESA report.  
  
We will only submit an electronic copy of our report to you unless you request otherwise. At your request, we 
can also send the report to additional project team members. 
 
 

 
 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

Environmental Services 
 

 

 

 

 

 

BRAUN INTERTEC TEAM MEMBER 

PH
AS

E 
I E

N
VI

RO
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SI
TE

 
CO

RR
ID

O
R 

AS
SE

SS
M

EN
T 

CO
N

TA
M

IN
AT

ED
 S

O
IL

 A
N

D 
GR

O
U

N
DW

AT
ER

 A
N

AL
YS

IS
 

CO
N

TA
M

IN
AT

ED
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 

SP
EC

IA
L 

PR
O

VI
SI

O
N

S 

EN
GI

N
EE

RI
N

G 
CO

N
TR

O
LS

 &
 U

TI
LI

TY
 

RE
CO

M
M

EN
DA

TI
O

N
S 

RE
SP

O
N

SE
 A

CT
IO

N
 P

LA
N

 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 

PR
O

TE
CT

IO
N

 O
F 

AQ
U

AT
IC

 R
ES

O
U

RC
ES

 
FR

O
M

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

RI
N

G 
O

VE
RS

IG
HT

 

Jill Mickelson, PE Principal Engineer x x x x x x x 

Michelle LaGarde, PG, Project Geologist x x x  x  x 

Rose Kraus, Staff Scientist x x     x 

Mary Canino, PG, Principal Geologist x x x x x  x 

Dan Barrett, PG, Principal Geologist x x  x    

Travis Fristed, CPESC, PWS, Principal Scientist x     x  
 

Project Name: Kellogg Bridge Reconstruction  

Client Contact: SRF Consulting Group - Jamison 
Beisswenger 

Client Phone Number: 763.267.6605 

Project Description: Corridor Phase I ESA, Limited Phase II Drilling Investigation, Contaminated Soil and Groundwater 
Special Provisions, Response Action Planning, and Active Construction Phase (Environmental Monitoring and Material 
Management) 

 

Project Name: TH 43 Winona  

Client Contact: Minnesota Department of 
Transportation (MnDOT) - Kelsi Ustipak 

Client Phone Number: 612.257.2776 

Project Description: Corridor Phase I ESA, Limited Phase II Drilling Investigation, and Construction Phase (Environmental 
Monitoring and Material Management) 

 

Project Name: TH 57 Kasson  

Client Contact: MnDOT - Kelsi Ustipak Client Phone Number: 612.257.2776 

Project Description: Corridor Phase I ESA, Limited Phase II Drilling Investigation, and Construction Phase (Environmental 
Monitoring and Material Management) 

 
 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

Geotechnical Services 
 

BRAUN INTERTEC TEAM MEMBER 

PA
VE

M
EN

T 
CO

RI
N

G,
 S

O
IL

S 

EX
PL

O
RA

TI
O

N
 &

 R
EC

O
M

M
ED

AT
IO

NS
 

R-
VA

LU
E 

DE
TE

RM
IN

AT
IO

N
S 

M
AT

ER
IA

LS
 T

ES
TI

N
G 

DE
N

SI
TY

 A
N

D 
CO

M
PA

CT
IO

N
 T

ES
TI

NG
 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

EN
SI

TY
 A

N
D 

M
AT

ER
IA

L 
TE

ST
IN

G 

PA
VE

M
EN

T 
M

AT
ER

IA
L 

DE
SI

GN
 

RE
CO

M
M

DN
EA

TI
O

N
S 

PA
VE

M
EN

T 
ST

RU
CT

U
RA

L 
AN

AL
YS

IS
 &

 

TE
ST

IN
G 

 

Kyle Johnson, PE, Project Engineer x x x x x x x 

Brandon Wright, PE, Senior Engineer x x x x x x x 

Jesse Gamst, Field Project Manager   x x x  x 

Philip Bailey, PE, Senior Engineer x x x x x x x 

Perry Gadbois, Field Technician   x x x   

 

Project Name: Freeborn CSAH 22/Bridge Ave 
Reconstruction 

 

Client Contact: SRF, Inc. – Matthew D. Hansen Client Phone Number: 763.475.0010 

Project Description: Geotechnical Evaluation, Environmental Services 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

Cost Proposal and Schedule for Initial 
Services 
Cost 
  
Braun Intertec will invoice you for the services described above on a lump-sum basis. The lump-sum cost for 
each of the tasks described in the Scope of Services is listed below. 
  

Service Description Lump Sum Cost 
Modified Phase I Environmental Site Assessment $6,474.25 

  
The proposed fee is based on the scope of services described and the assumption that our services will be 
authorized within 30 days and that others will not delay us beyond our proposed schedule. 
  
 
This includes one hour of post deliverable consulting time for revisions to the draft report and/or 
communication with you and/or the project team. Additional requests for meetings, consulting, or 
modifications to the report will be billed at a rate of $150/hr. 

  

Schedule 
  
We anticipate the draft Modified Phase I ESA report will be completed within eight weeks from the date of 
your written authorization. The Modified Phase I ESA report will remain in draft status until we are notified by 
you to proceed with issuance of the final report. 
  
If we cannot complete our proposed scope of services according to this schedule due to circumstances beyond 
our control, we may need to revise this proposal prior to completing the remaining tasks. 
 

 

 

 



 

 City of Wabasha   

TRUNK HIGHWAY 60 REALIGNMENT 

References 
Braun Intertec has 31 office locations that has completed hundreds of projects around the country in the last 5 years. Our 
team that we are identifying in our proposal has collected 5 addition projects that fall within the scope of work outline in 
the RFP as well has additional Geotechnical projects for the future.  

 

Project Name: North Broadway Sewer Realignment  

Client Contact: Rochester Public Works- Kyle Schlink Client Phone Number: 507.328.2444 

Project Description: Phase I ESA, Phase II ESA, Geotechnical Evaluation  

 

Project Name: TH 60 Zumbro Falls   

Client Contact: MnDOT - Kelsi Ustipak Client Phone Number: 612.257.2776 

Project Description: Corridor Phase I ESA, Limited Phase II Drilling Investigation, and Construction Phase (Environmental 
Monitoring and Material Management) 

 

Project Name: CSAH 21 (Olmsted County)  

Client Contact: David Betts, Stonebrooke 
Engineering, Inc. 

Client Phone Number: 952.402.9202 

Project Description: Geotechnical Evaluation 

 

Project Name: Rochester Bus Rapid Transit  

Client Contact: Shawn Combs-Walding, SRF 
Consulting Group, Inc. 

Client Phone Number: 763.475.0010 

Project Description: Corridor Phase I ESA, Limited Phase II Drilling Investigation, Geotechnical Evaluation 

 

Project Name: City of Wabasha Street 
Improvements 

 

Client Contact: Brian Malm, Bolton & Menk, Inc. Client Phone Number: 507.208.4332 

Project Description: Geotechnical Evaluation 

 



   
Port Authority 5. 3.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: 2025 Budget Discussion- Main Street and Chamber Contributions 
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
Discuss 2025 CEDA support, Main Street contribution, and Chamber contribution.  Having CEDA staff two days
per week in 2025 would cost $53,580 ($4,465 per month).  City Council has asked the Port Authority to make the
Chamber contribution ($15,000) and Main Street contribution ($6,000) in 2025.   

Main Street has also requested to be funded at $10,000 to further their work: 

We haven’t had an increase in donation in 5 years. We would like to continue to work with city and Port on
downtown efforts and could use about $10,000 per year instead of $6,000.

Port already approved increase in staffing amounts for City staff. 
 
We are consistently improving the community with so many beautification efforts- banners, planters, benches, bike
share, bike shelter , water fountain, artists on main, murals, history plaques and updated website to promote walking
tours, interactive maps , events and  promotions like Mayors tree lighting, Shop Small Saturday and Coffee Meet
Ups.
 
Wabasha Main Street needs room for a little more funding to collaborate on larger projects from Port Authority or
City  keep up with our with our added investments in community.
 
We will also be asking from the community for project investments as in past. We pride ourselves in collaborations.
 
Thank you for your past and continued support of $6000 per year. As you may or may not know half of  that goes
directly to RETHOS for Mn Main Street membership dues and National Main Street dues so we can receive Project
funds for City projects in the Main Street District only.
 
We all benefit from a healthier vibrant downtown when many little projects brighten up our daily lives.
 
Check out our website for updated projects and social media posts.
 
www.wabashamainstreet.org 
 
 

Attachments
Cost Projections Budget 2025 

http://www.wabashamainstreet.org


Wabasha Port Authority Financial Summary and Projection
September 30, 2024

Port Authority Current Account Balances
Port Authority Fund 200 Cash

Port Authority Checking $77,356
Port Authority Fund 210 Revolving Loan Fund

Port Authority Revolving Loan Fund $22,217
Total Current Account Balances: $99,573

Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25
Port Authority: Fund 200

Port Authority Revenue
Misc Interest $250 $250 $250
2025 Tax Levy $61,381
Winter Haul $258,000 $258,000
Interfund Loan from the General Fund $150,000
Federal and State Barge Grant Reimbursement  $     200,000

Port Authority Revenue $150,000 $0 $258,250 $0 $0 $250 $258,000 $0 $61,631 $0 $200,000 $0

Port Authority Expenses
City of Wabasha - Admin Support $7,500 $45,000 $52,500
CEDA $3,511 $3,511 $3,511 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465 $4,465
Barge Terminal Design Work and Engineering $94,784 $250,000
Environmental Review (Port matching funds) $30,000
Interfund Loan from the General Fund $300,000
Chamber Contribution $15,000
Main Street Contribution $6,000

Port Authority Expenses $3,511 $33,511 $3,511 $32,965 $99,249 $4,465 $254,465 $4,465 $4,465 $49,465 $4,465 $304,465

Port Authority Fund 200 Balance $223,846 $190,335 $445,074 $412,109 $312,860 $308,645 $312,180 $307,715 $364,881 $315,416 $510,951 $206,486

Revolving Loan Fund: Fund 201
Revolving Loan Fund Revenue

Hill Loan Repayment $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550
Anderson House Repayment $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714 $714
Round the Clock Nutrition Repayment $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183 $183
Cassie Modjeski Repayment $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208
Broken Paddle Repayment $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28 $28
5th Grant Repayment $265 $265 $265 $265 $265 $265 $265

Revolving Loan Fund Revenue $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683 $1,683

Revolving Loan Fund Expenses
5th Grant $7,573
Anderson House $1,863
Revolving Loan Fund Expenses $9,436 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revolving Loan Fund Balance $14,464 $16,148 $17,831 $19,514 $21,198 $22,881 $24,564 $26,248 $27,931 $29,614 $31,298 $32,981



Wabasha Port Authority Bank Account Detail
September 2024

Summary Account Details
Port Authority Account Summary Port Authority Checking Account

Port Authority Balance: Fund 200 $77,356.29 August 31, 2024 Balance $116,457.43
Revolving Loan Fund Balance: Fund 201 $22,216.65      Deposit: Interest
Total $99,572.94      Withdrawal: Bolton & Menk Invoice $38,738.00

     Withdrawal: Travel Reimbursement $363.14
September 30, 2024 Balance $77,356.29

Port Authority Revolving Loan Fund
August 31, 2024 Balance $37,669.55
     Deposit: Broken Paddle Loan Payment $27.71
     Deposit: Hill Loan Payment $550.00
     Deposit: Modjeski Loan Payment $210.00
     Deposit: Round the Clock Loan Payment $200.00
     Deposit: Round the Clock Loan Payment $200.00
     Deposit: Anderson House Loan Payment $714.29
     Deposit: 5th Grant Loan Application Fee $100.00
    Withdrawal: 5th Grant Revolving Loan Fund Disbursement $17,427.19
September 30, 2024 Balance $22,216.65



































































































































































































































































































































































   
Port Authority 5. 4.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: RETHOS Downtown Assessment Discussion
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:
Conduct a Rethos Downtown Assessment - Mary Flicek

ITEM SUMMARY:
Dusty Liston was asked to look at a tourism assessment. In that process, Mary Flicek asked for discussion on a
potential downtown assessment done by RETHOS who knows our community well. It would help us record our
assets and look at how to attract new businesses. 

The sample assessment(s) looks like it’s more of a cultural survey assets survey. A concern would be that of not
having between the existing strategic plan for Main street and our existing downtown
plan https://www.wabasha.org/downtownplan/
 
Here are some of the goals that were created in the other plans (Litchfield) 

Increase park programming1.
Rehabilitate and increase holiday decorations tradition2.
Increase connections with high school3.
Convene a community calendar4.

Lake City downtown assessment
(2023) https://lakecity.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Lake-City-Downtown-Assessment-Final.pdf 

Address the unrest – a lot of negativity that their needs come second to tourists1.
Tailor events, promotions and activities for residents of Lake City rather than tourists2.
Focus on revitalization efforts to support the downtown infrastructure both public and private (address weeds,
buildings)

3.

Opportunities – recruit a brewery, cultivate regular happenings rather than big events, leverage
Farmers' Market, leverage vacant lots, address community divide

4.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Wait for a grant opportunity to do a downtown assessment. Wait until Mary Flicek is able to attend meeting. Find
out cost. 

ACTION REQUIRED:
Discussion

Attachments
Transformation Plan Wabasha 

https://www.wabasha.org/downtownplan/
https://www.wabasha.org/downtownplan/
https://lakecity.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Lake-City-Downtown-Assessment-Final.pdf
https://lakecity.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Lake-City-Downtown-Assessment-Final.pdf
https://lakecity.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Lake-City-Downtown-Assessment-Final.pdf
https://lakecity.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Lake-City-Downtown-Assessment-Final.pdf


Transformation Strategy: Elder & Family Friendly Goal: Enhance, Engage & Educate with Public Art

Timeline: 2023

Economic Vitality

Action Plan (Purpose + Intended

Outcome):

1. Reinvestment Stats shared

2. Coffee Meet Ups Quarterly

3. Business Liaison with Port

Design Promotion Organization

Action Plan (Purpose + Intended

Outcome):

1. Recognizing History Programs

2. Expanded & Relocated Planters

3. New Bike Signage

4. Construction Committee for new

Streetscape Design

5. Design New WMS Brochure to

increase visibility &

memberships, promote updated

Mission Statement

Action Plan (Purpose + Intended

Outcome):

1. Shop Small Saturday

2. Mayor’s Tree Lighting & REMAX

Christmas Event- Santas

3. Construction Liaison

4. New City Motto- Eagle Capital

Action Plan (Purpose + Intended

Outcome):

1. Public Places are Sacred Spaces

Mural Project

2. BOM Conference attendance

How success will be measured:

1. Completed and shared City

2. Total numbers attended &

variety of Programs, sponsors

3. HVAC support, applications

How success will be measured:

1. Number of Applicants ordering

2. Surveys, NEC location,

additional planters ordered

3. Signage completed & hung

4. Final selections and voice heard

as WMS, HPC and Business

owner

5. Additional Memberships came

in- widely received with new

design for tear sheet

How success will be measured:

1. Number of participants &

Outcomes of volume of sales

2. Number of families attending,

treats handed out

3. Educate on social media via

City & Engineers

4. LOS to Preston Cook to adopt

How success will be measured:

1. Multiple Grants written and

awarded to fund $20K mural

Volunteers assisting, engaging

partnerships, organizations and

promoting at Capstone event

2. Encouraging full Board to BOM

Conference, Presented at

conference- Owner Occupied

Project Lead/Partners Identified:

1. Wendy Busch, City Clerk, Bev

Hall City Librarian, Annette

Hedquist- NEC COO

2. Becky Shaw, Anderson House

3. Ben Strand, Port Authority,

CEDA & City- Caroline

Gregorson, City Administrator

Project Lead/Partners Identified:

1. Mary Flicek, WMS Director &

HPC Chair, business owner

Emily Durand, Mayor

2. Brian Hovey, Cabbage Patch,

Annette Hedquist NEC, Tony

Johnson, Parks Super.

3. Craig Falkum, Bike Advocate

4. Katy Grehr, Bolton & Menk

5. Janet Runions, Artist

Project Lead/Partners Identified:

1. Mary Flicek, WMS Director and

Brenda Pierson, B & B & B

owner

2. Sherri Murphy, REMAX realtor

and Mary Flicek, Annette

Hedquest, WK C of C

3. WMS shares social media from

Bolton Menk and City of

Wabasha

4. Preston Cook benefactor of NEC

Project Lead/Partners Identified:

1. Sue Mundy- Local Mural Artist

and Mary Flicek, grants writer-

WKCAF/SMIF, SEMAC,

Wabasha Boost/Blandin Grant-

Emily Durand ,NEC Director

Meg Gammage for Doffing

Foundation Funds.

2. Craig Falkum, Annette

Hedquist, Sherri Murphy, Dave

Wogen





   
Port Authority 5. 5.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: Determine Changes to Revolving Loan Process 
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
Please look at the attached guideline documents and check lists. We would like feedback as follows:  

Is staff authorized to deny a loan based on not meeting qualifications?1.
Should there be a presentation from the applicant and if so, when?2.
Should the Loan Committee review the loan and determine approval or denial recommendation (current
procedures)? Or should we establish a worksheet that is completed by CEDA staff member that includes their
recommendation based on underwriting criteria, that is supplied to the committee? Maximum loan is $25,000.

3.

Should a business plan be required or only in cases that it exceeds $25,000? (Currently only required case by
case and to our knowledge, it’s never been required), Currrent recommendation to require it. 

4.

Should loan funds be provided up front or require receipts to demonstrate its been spent on what the loan
funds were for?  

5.

Request to supply credit score. 6.

Attachments



 
1

                                                                   

Wabasha Business Revolving Loan Program Checklist
I. Complete Loan Application.

 Application Form Completed and Signed, included completed sources and uses budget.
 Current Business plan
 For loan requests over $25,000, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, or Articles of Organization

will be required if applicable.
 Financial Statements current month plus prior 2 calendar years
 Personal Financial Statements from a primary lender plus a recent credit report for all parties

owning 20% or more of the     company
 Proposed Collateral/security
 Letter from the bank or a third party confirmation by CEDA/Port staff with banker than the

borrower needs traditional financing is not available or not feasible.
 Projections and Cash Flow Statements
 Other: Exhibits, Photos, Building and Site Plans, etc.

**Port Authority Coordinator – If the loan is approved, a UCC will need to be filed with the MN Office
of the Secretary of state: Minnesota Secretary Of State - UCC Lien Filing Forms. Ask your city
administration office for the city’s login and password.

 UCC filed?  Yes/No (circle one)

Il. Criteria by which the project will be evaluated
  The project fosters private investment.
  The project will increase the City’s tax base.
  The project creates and retains permanent private sector jobs.
 Number: Full-Time Part-Time:           Wages:

  The project improves economic opportunity and living standards.
  The project complements the economic goals of the city (complementing other business, eliminating
blight, retaining, or expanding wealth, etc.)

  The type of business proposed adds value to the city
  The loan will provide gap financing

https://www.sos.state.mn.us/business-liens/ucc-tax-cns-forms-fees/ucc-lien-filing-forms/


 
2

Ill. Eligible Activities. *
Ten Year Amortization

1. Acquisition and development, easements, and rights-of-way.
2. Construction, conversion, enlargement, repairs, or modernization of buildings (including facade repairs),
plants, machinery, equipment, access streets and roads, parking areas, utilities, and pollution control and
abatement facilities.
3. Loans for startup operating cost and working capital.
4. Technical assistance for private business enterprises.

*Note: Ineligible activities. Funds may not be used for producing agricultural products through growing, cultivation,
and harvesting directly or through horizontally integrated livestock operations except for commercial nurseries,
timber operations or limited agricultural production related to technical assistance projects.

IV. Eligible Applicants.
1. Located in the City of Wabasha or on a case-by-case basis, the Loan Committee may waive this requirement

to a business located outside the City of Wabasha if they determine it will have a positive economic impact
on the Wabasha community.

2.  Any private business that will employ 50 or fewer employees and less than $1 million on projected
gross revenues.

3. The grantee should create or retain least one full time job for each $10,000 loaned from the Revolving Loan
Fund.

4. Project must demonstrate economic impact for the community.

V. Loan Amount, Equity Participation, Assessment and Risk.
1. The loan amount does not exceed $25,000 or 50% of total project cost, whichever is less (Exceptions

may be granted by the Review Committee on a case-by-case basis)
2. The loan amount is not less than $5,000.00.
3. Applicant is funding fifty percent (50%) of their project through SBA, private lenders, equity, or other

sources.
4. Is the loan taking a subordinate position to private financing (either equity or commercial lending)?

 Yes or No
5. The applicant has the capacity and creditworthiness to re-pay the loan.
6. Applicant has necessary management skills and ability.
7. Credit risk is acceptable and adequate collateral is available.
8. Wages for new and existing jobs pay a living wage.

9. The interest rate will be 3 percent below current prime with capped at 5 percent. The final interest rate
will ultimately be determined by the Port Authority.

VI. Other: Guidelines for the regulation of State Economic Development Revolving
Loan Funds.



 
3

1. Job creation and retention. Loan Agreements will establish goals for the number of jobs to be retained
or created by each business. Failure to achieve the stated job creation/retention may result in loan
cancellation prior to term and payment in full will then be required.



   
Port Authority 6. 1.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: Coordinators Report
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:

Attachments
September 2024 Wabasha Port Authority Coordinators Report 



2024 Wabasha Port Authority Coordinator Report  

Meeting: Tuesday, September 24, 2024  

Assist with Housing & Development: 2024 PRIORITY 

● Continue to assist exploring the feasibility of listing city-owned land for development (Main Street Property)  

● Continue to assist establishing the feasibility of a funding strategy for redevelopment of River Crossings (Hwy 60 

reroute)   

● Continue to assist with the redevelopment of Grandpa’s Barn/Transfer Station into a 44-unit multifamily housing 

unit 

 

Assist with Childcare: 2024 PRIORITY 

• Working with the Mayor to gain a childcare facility in Wabasha 

• Assist potential in-home childcare providers with business startups and resources/funding 

 

Revolving Loan Fund Program: 2024 PRIORITY 

● Continue to send monthly emails to all businesses informing them of the Port’s Revolving Loan Program.  

● Re-capitalize the revolving loan fund by applying to the USDA Revolving Loan Fund Recapitalization Application in 

fall of 2024.  

● Current RLF holders (6): Anderson House, Round the Clock Nutrition, Hills Hardware Hank, Cassie Modjeski (In-

home daycare facility), Broken Paddle, 5th Grant Boutique 

● Currently working on letters of support and awaiting businesses to confirm submission (4 so far) 

● Rob – Wabasha County Fair has applied, but did not meet guidelines.   

Business Consulting (Business Retention, Expansion & Attraction): ONGOING 

 

● Continue to assist Wabasha businesses looking for assistance with Port programs (RLF) and business start-ups, 

expansions, relocation, etc. or any needs entrepreneurs may have in coordination with the Wabasha Chamber of 

Commerce  

● Continue to send out SBA, SMIF, and DEED grant and loan relief programs by email to businesses.  

● Currently building an up-to-date business directory for proper outreach services and updated employee numbers 

for each business 

● Assisting with the Food Share relocation and grant writing, if needed. 

● Continue to develop a Façade Improvement Program 

● Continue to develop a spreadsheet with industrial/commercial land/buildings to promote future 

commercial/industrial development into Wabasha  

 

Façade Improvement Program: 2024 PRIORITY 

 

• The program has been funded with $15k to start.  

• Marketing has begun: Email(s) sent to local businesses, press release complete and sent to newspapers, and 

advertising the program on the City and Port Authority’s city website pages. 

 

Barge Terminal/Highway 61 project: AS NEEDED 

 



● Participate in Port Association meetings and obtain funding for the Barge Terminal as directed by City 

Administrator and Port Authority President 

● Capitalize and operationalize the development of the terminal with the assistance of the City Administrator and 

Port Authority President  

● Port Authority has received $5 million in funding for the Highway 60 re-alignment project 

 

Municipal Campground (Marcou Park) 

• The project has value as a tourism benefit to continue to invest time in gathering estimates. 

• Public Works feels they are somewhat at capacity to manage a project – recommending to move keep this on the 

Port’s radar for the future.  

 

Eagle Basin 

• Project underway – playground.  

 

Wabasha Livability Page 

• Cathy, Dusty, and the mayor will develop in coordination with Vision Design Group and the Blandin Foundation 

 

Grant Opportunities:  
 

● SMIF: Small Town Grant – Early Care and Education Grants – Promise Act Grant – Fall 2024; Economic 
Development Grant – Early 2025 

● USDA: RLF – 2 cycles/year (Feb and October) 
● MN DNR grants: Parks and Recs – Every Spring 
● Compeer Financial Grants: General Use Grant, etc. - always available 
● MN DEED: always available  
● SMIF – Taylor Rural Grant – CEDA only communities – up to $25k 

● AARP grants available.  

 

Progress Made (November 2023 to present): 
 

• Connected with businesses to access their needs – continuous 

• Built a Business Directory – continuous 

• Port Authority website development - continuous 

• Attended the Chamber of Commerce Business Roundtable – Façade Improvement Program born 

• Implemented Location One, or LOIS, on the Port Authority’s webpage 

• Created a Façade Improvement Program  

• Assisted Broken Paddle, Michael Anderson, with the submittal of his RLF application 

• Assisted with letters of support for the MN Workforce Housing Grant to major employers 

• Visited with Wabasha Early Childhood Care facility manager, Jane, and the mayor 2.27.24 

• Attended a Food Share meeting with Dave and the Mayor on 3.5.24 

• Assisted two businesses with SMIF’s Competitive PROMISE Act grant opportunity  

• Assisted Cathy, the city, and KB with the MN DEED Redevelopment Grant due 1 August 2024 

• Suggest RLF guideline changes (interest rate) for RLF renewal 

• Created a BR&E survey and sent to all businesses June 2024 

• Resurrected a few old goals of the Port and will pursue them if approved by the Port Authority 

• Launched Business Façade Improvement Program 
 
 



   
Port Authority 6. 2.        
Meeting Date: 09/24/2024  
ITEM TITLE: Administrator Update 
DEPARTMENT: Administration

PURPOSE:

ITEM SUMMARY:
- Winter haul should be starting soon. 
- Housing Task Force provided input on listing lot near Cannon Park for sale for housing. We did not have quorum
on parks commission. Is it valuable to request public input? 
- Submitted $2 million grant request for Hwy 60. It was a team effort and the letters obtained demonstrate this
project can be an important economic driver for Wabasha. 
- We received our Housing Grant! The downtown apartments are able to continue to move forward. 


	Agenda
	AI_6215_August 20, 2024 Port Authority Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_August 20, 2024 Port Authority Meeting Minutes
	AI_6216_August Port Authority Financials
	       ATT_August 2024 Port Authority Financials
	AI_6245_Bolton & Menk Invoice 0345049
	       ATT_Bolton and Menk Invoice 0345049
	AI_6263_September 2024 Port Authority Travel Reimbursement
	       ATT_September 2024 Port Authority Travel Reimbursement
	AI_6264_5th Grant Revolving Loan Disbursement 1
	       ATT_5th Grant RLF Disbursement 1
	AI_6273_5th Grant Revolving Loan Disbursement 2
	       ATT_5th Grant RLF Disbursement 2
	AI_6265_Determination that the Final Barge Terminal EIS is adequate and approve the determination of adequacy notice. 
	       ATT_FEIS Determination of Adequacy for Approval
	       ATT_Minnesota DNR Comment Letter
	       ATT_Charlie Bricher Comment Letter 
	       ATT_MPCA Comment Letter 
	AI_6267_Approve Braun Intertec to conduct Phase I environmental on old Athletic Field Site and expenditure not to exceed $6,474.25 
	       ATT_
	Cover Page: REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL GEOTECHNICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
	Braun Cover Letter
	Consultant Qualifications
	Resumes
	Environmental Team
	Geotechnical Team

	Project Approach
	Cost Proposal and Schedule for Initial Services
	References


	AI_6250_2025 Budget Discussion- Main Street and Chamber Contributions 
	       ATT_Cost Projections Budget 2025
	AI_6256_RETHOS Downtown Assessment Discussion
	       ATT_Transformation Plan Wabasha
	AI_6262_Determine Changes to Revolving Loan Process 
	       ATT_
	AI_6259_Coordinators Report
	       ATT_September 2024 Wabasha Port Authority Coordinators Report
	AI_6261_Administrator Update 

